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Stock#: 74373
Map Maker: Hancock / Lockling

Date: 1868 (June 3rd 1880)
Place: San Diego
Color: Pen & Ink with Wash Color
Condition: VG
Size: 31.7 x 25 inches

Price: SOLD

Description:

Coronado & North Island  -- Rancho San Diego Island -- An Early Survey of Coronado and San
Diego Bay

An 1880 copy of the original manuscript survey map of Rancho San Diego Island (Coronado) and the area
around San Diego Bay, including Point Loma, Coronado, Imperial Beach, and Downtown.

This is an early hand-drawn copy of the original 1867 Henry Hancock survey of the so called Rancho San
Diego Island, which was part of the final confirmation of ownership of Coronado and North Island to
Archibald C. Peachy and William H. Aspinwall.  The present map was drawn by San Diego County
Surveyor L.L. Lockling, in June of 1880.  The map is also extensively annotated with pencil notes and
corrections, likely by use by early surveyors or title companies making reference to the map's details.

The map is composed of careful measurements of the coastline of Imperial Beach and Coronado (at the
time North Island and Coronado Island), along with a delineation of Point Loma and the shoreline of the
Bay on in what is now Downtown San Diego, National City, etc.
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Among the notes on the map is "U.S. Quartermaster's Store House at new San Diego."  This shows the
location of the future Downtown San Diego in the year Alonzo Horton arrived in San Diego and began
what would become the process of developing and promoting modern day San Diego.

There is much interesting detail about the early configuration of the Bay, which has been subject to
substantial hydro-engineering and landfilling since this map was made. For instance, North Island and
Coronado have long been joined to create one landmass; the strand that connects Imperial Beach and
Coronado has been majorly reconfigured.

The map notes many sloughs, sand plats, freshwater springs, dry lakes, high-water lines, bluffs, the deep
channel between "U.S. Quartermaster's Store House at New San Diego" and Coronado, etc. Therefore it
provides important insight into the natural configuration of a major San Diego geographical feature that
no longer exists in that form.

A note on the map reads:

The field notes of the Island and Peninsula of San Diego from which this Plat has been made have
been examined and approved and are on file in this Office.

U.S. Surveyor General's Office.
San Francisco Office.
San Francisco California.
January 21st 1868.

The map includes a plethora of amendments in pencil, in another hand, making changes to measurements
in both the tables and the map image itself.

Rancho San Diego Island

Rancho San Diego Island (also called "Peninsula of San Diego") was a Mexican land grant  given in 1846
by Governor Pío Pico to Pedro C. Carrillo. The grant consisted of the strip of land lying between the San
Diego Bay and the Pacific Ocean, which was initially referred to as the Island or Peninsula of San Diego,
and which included present day Coronado and North Island.
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Pedro C. Carrillo studied law in Boston, where he had been taken by Captain William G. Dana, the
husband of Pedro's sister, María Josefa Petra del Carmen. In 1846, Carrillo married Josefa Bandini,
daughter of Juan Bandini. Pedro Carrillo and Josefa were given Rancho Peninsula de San Diego by Pio
Pico, as a wedding present.  Five months later, Carrillo sold the property to Captain Bezer Simmons, the
American captain of the trading ship "Magnolia".

Bezer Simmons (1810–1850) of New Bedford, Massachusetts married Laura Billings in 1845. Laura
Billings was an older sister of Frederick H. Billings, who accompanied Captain Simmons and his wife, to
San Francisco in 1849. 

With the cession of California to the United States following the Mexican-American War, the 1848 Treaty
of Guadalupe Hidalgo provided that the land grants would be honored. As required by the Land Act of
1851, a claim for Rancho San Diego Island was filed with the Public Land Commission in 1852. Frederick
H. Billings, James R. Bolton and Henry Wager Halleck of the law firm Halleck, Peachy & Billings
represented Simmons interests.  In 1851, the Executors of Bezer Simmons estate sold their interests to
William Henry Aspinwall, and the grant was patented to Archibald C. Peachy (a law partner of Simmons
Brother-in-Law, Frederick Billings) and William H. Aspinwall in 1869. 

William Henry Aspinwall (1807-1875) was a prominent American businessman who was a partner in the
merchant firm of Howland & Aspinwall and was a co-founder of both the Pacific Mail Steamship Company
and Panama Canal Railway companies which revolutionized the migration of goods and people to the
Western coast of the United States.

In 1885, the entire property including North Island, was purchased by Elisha S. Babcock, Jr., Captain
Charles T. Hinde, Hampton L. Story, and Jacob Gruendike. Babcock then invited his brother-in-law, Heber
Ingle, and Josephus Collett, a railroad stockholder, to become investors, and formed the Coronado Beach
Company on April 7, 1886,  and started construction on the Hotel del Coronado.

The first development on North Island took place in 1893 when the US government secured about 18
acres and later in 1917, the government took possession of the North Island. On October 25, 1935, the
entire area was reserved for the Naval Air Station.
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Rarity

The map is a unique survival.  We were unable to locate any other examples of either the original 1867
Plat map or any other early copies.

Provenance:  We are uncertain of the exact history of the map, but it is believed by its prior owner to
have been rescued from the trash by an employee of a Title Company in the 1960s along with a small
group of other San Diego related maps.

Detailed Condition:
Pen and Ink on drafting linen. Some minor soiling.


